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CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company

The Company was established in October 2008 by 117 shareholders, initially focusing on 
long-term insurance under the name ”Ethio Life Insurance S.C. (E.Life).” In August 2012, the 
company expanded its services to include General Insurance, becoming a composite insurer. 
Since then, it has been known as Ethio Life and General Insurance S.C., offering innovative life 
and general insurance products and services.

However, in consideration of the immense potentials and viability of the non-life business, 
emanating from the rapid economic growth of the country, shareholders were determined to 
expand the service of the Company by including non-life (general) insurance products. Accord-
ingly, the Company was registered as composite insurer and started providing innovative Life 
and General Insurance products and service since August 2012. Hence, the name “Ethio Life 
and General Insurance S.C” emerged.

Vision

“By 2025, ELiG will be one of the undisputed markets leaders in introducing innovative insur-
ance products and services in the Ethiopian insurance industry.”

Mission

“To innovatively deliver real value in insurance at a scale and at a risk-based price by using 
state-of-the-art technology and deploying a professional and customer-friendly human resource 
to ensure a stable and reasonable return to shareholders and a worthy service to society.”

Motto

“Securing the future today!”

Values

•	 Honesty and Integrity.
•	 Service Excellence. 
•	 High Value for Resources.
•	 Respect for the Environment.

Products

ELiG provides a wide range of insurance solution, both Life and Non-Life insurance lines of 
business to the public at large.

Governance Structure

ELiG, at its apex, led by competent and well-experienced Board of Directors drawn from aca-
demics and businesses, and constituted by individuals and corporate entities whose profession-
al mix is from areas like Economics, Law, Accounting, Engineering and Management. It also 
employed a team of professionals and qualified Senior Management Executives.
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1. NOTICE OF THE 16TH ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING 
OF THE SHAREHOLDERS

Ethio Life and General Insurance S.C (Address: Addis Ababa, Sub-city-Kirkos; 
Woreda- 02, House no-659, Company’s subscribed capital-Birr 311,092,000 million, 

Insurance license registration no.013/08)

The 16th Ordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders of Ethio Life and General 
Insurance S.C will be held on 16th of November 20224 starting 8:30 AM at Inter 
Luxury Hotel, in Addis Ababa. In light of this, the Board of Directors of the Company 
is hereby pleased to give notice to all Shareholders or their legal proxies to attend 
the above captioned meeting. 

Agenda for the 16th Ordinary General Meeting 

By the order of the Board of Directors
Ethio Life and General Insurance S.C

1.	 Approval of Agendas
2.	 Consideration of share transfers and accepting new share holders
3.	 Approval of new shares acquired by existing and new shareholders as per the decision 

made on the 9th extraordinary meeting
4.	 Consideration of the 2023/24 Annual Report of Directors.
5.	 Consideration of the 2023/24 Annual Report of External Auditors.
6.	 Approval of the Company’s External Auditors’ remuneration for the 2024/25 FY.
7.	 Deliberation on and Approval of the proposed appropriation of 2023/4 profit
8.	 Approval of Directors monthly allowance for 2024/25
9.	 Approval of annual compensation of the Board of Directors for 2024/25 FY
10.	Approval of assignment of replaced member of the Board of Directors 
11.	 Election of Members of Board Nomination Committee and fixing their remuneration.
12.	Consideration and approval of minutes of the 16TH Annual Regular Meeting of the 

Shareholders.
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2. BOARD CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT  

Dear Esteemed Shareholders,

Welcome to the 16th Annual General Meeting! 
As we convene for the 16th General Assembly, 
I am honored to reflect on the achievements 
of the 2023/24 budget year on behalf of 
the Board of Directors. This year has been 
pivotal for Ethio Life and General Insurance 
S.Co., marked by transformative initiatives and 
outstanding growth that position us well for the 
future.

One of the most significant advancements this 
year has been the successful automation of 
our core insurance operations. This strategic 
move has enabled us to provide state-of-the-art 
services, enhancing efficiency and accuracy 
in our processes. By embracing technology, 
we not only streamline our operations but also 
elevate the customer experience, allowing us to 
respond swiftly to the needs of our clients.

In our pursuit of sustained growth and excellence, we commenced the development of 
a comprehensive five-year strategic plan utilizing the Balanced Scorecard (BSC) model. 
This approach will help align our initiatives with our long-term goals, ensuring that 
every effort contributes to our strategic direction. The BSC model will provide us with a 
framework to measure progress and adapt to changes in the market, positioning Ethio 
Life and General Insurance S.Co. for continued success.

I am thrilled to report that we have achieved a remarkable growth in Gross Written 
Premium (GWP) of 39% which is the highest in the industry, reaching GWP of Birr 
734 million this year. It positioned us 14th in the market with market share of 2.6%. 
This achievement underscores our commitment to expanding our market presence and 
meeting the diverse needs of our clients. Looking ahead, we are ambitiously planning 
to exceed Birr 1 billion in premium income for the 2024/25 budget year, reinforcing 
our growth trajectory and our position in the industry.

In line with our philosophy of providing customer-centric services, we have established 
the ‘Customer Service Advisory Unit.’ This dedicated team is committed to delivering 
unique and personalized services to our customers, ensuring that their experiences with 
us are exceptional. By prioritizing customer feedback and tailoring our offerings, we 
are strengthening our relationships and enhancing customer satisfaction.
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As we celebrate these achievements, I extend my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, 
employees, and partners. Your unwavering support and dedication have been 
instrumental in our success. Together, we are building a resilient and innovative company 
that stands ready to meet the challenges of tomorrow.

It is worth to mention here that the role of different stakeholders for this encouraging 
achievements and successes attained by the company during the budget year is very 
crucial. Therefore, I would like to express my utmost gratitude on behalf of myself and the 
board of directors to esteemed clients, shareholders, company management and staff, 
sales agents and brokers, reinsurers, National Bank of Ethiopia and other supporting 
partners. 

Finally, I sincerely wish peace and prosperity for Ethiopia and Ethiopian people. 

Warm regards,

Hailu Alemu 
Board Chairman
Ethio Life and General Insurance S.C.
November 16,2024
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3. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
 

Dear Shareholders,

Ladies and Gentlemen;

Good morning and welcome to the 16th 
Annual General Meeting of Ethio Life and 
General Insurance Company (ELiG). It is a 
great pleasure to see esteemed shareholders 
gathered here today.

As we gather to reflect on the achievements 
of our company during the 2023/24 fiscal 
year, I feel with pride and gratitude. This year 
has been marked by resilience and growth, 
amidst the challenges posed by inflation and 
regional instability. I am pleased to share 
that ELiG has excelled in several key areas, 
including significant growth in gross premium 
production, an increase in market share, 
and commendable profitability, all of which 
underscore our strategic initiatives and the dedication of our team.

During this period, we also made substantial progress in our capital growth, which 
demonstrates the ever-increasing trust of our shareholders and stakeholders. Another 
key indicator of our reliability is our ability to attract corporate customers, reflecting our 
commitment to delivering exceptional value. We undertook several strategic initiatives, 
such as the full implementation of core insurance software across our general business 
operations, which will enhance our efficiency and service delivery. Additionally, we 
developed our second five-year strategic plan, setting a clear roadmap for sustainable 
growth and innovation. Our focus on diversifying equity investments positions us for 
long-term stability and growth.

I would also like to highlight our increased branch networking during this budget period, 
marked by the opening of additional branch offices to better serve our customers. 
Our substantial investment in human resource development ensures that we provide 
professional and customer-friendly services to the public at large. We remain committed 
to our customer-centric approach, emphasizing integrity in our services at all levels.

I would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to our dedicated staff, whose hard work and 
commitment are the backbone of our achievements. I am also grateful to our customers 
and intermediaries for their trust and collaboration, as well as our reinsurers and other 
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insurance companies in the market for their cooperation, which fosters mutual benefits. 
To our shareholders and stakeholders, your support has been invaluable as we navigate 
these challenging times.

Finally, as we move forward, we remain committed to our vision of becoming the 
leading professional and friendly insurance provider in Ethiopia. We will continue 
to adapt and innovate; ensuring that we meet the evolving needs of our clients and 
contribute positively to our community. Thank you for being an integral part of our 
journey. Together, we will continue to achieve great things.

Yours faithfully;

Shimeles G/giorgis
Chief Executive Office
Ethio Life and General Insurance
November 16, 2024
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4. REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dear Shareholders:

The Board of Directors of Ethio Life and General Insurance S.C (ELiG) is pleased to present the 
Annual Report for 2023/24 fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. 

We first briefly cite reports on economic and business landscapes  at international, continental 
and national  levels. Understanding these landscapes is important as they have a significant 
influence on the insurance industry. We assess our opportunities and challenges and also 
evaluate our achievements as we operate in the given context. 

The report then provides a comprehensive overview of the company’s financial as well as non-
financial performances during the fiscal year. The audited annual financial statements, which 
detail the revenue, expenses and profitability, are included to show a transparent and reliable 
record of our financial performance. We then give a highlight of our strategic initiatives and 
future direction. 

4.1.	 Brief Overview of Global, Continental and National Economic and 
Business Landscapes

The IMF world economic outlook published on April 16, 2024, projects Global economic 
growth to be 3.2% and 3.3% in 2024 and in 2025, respectively. Services inflation is holding 
up progress on disinflation, which is complicating monetary policy normalization. Upside risks 
to inflation have thus increased, raising the prospect of higher for even longer interest rates, in 
the context of escalating trade tensions and increased policy uncertainty. 

Continentally, according to African Economic Outlook 2024 (a publication by African 
Development Bank Group) African economy continues to struggle with significant structural 
challenges, geopolitical tensions, political instability and climate issues affecting agriculture 
and energy production. Consequently, Africa’s real GDP growth slowed down and dropped 
from 4.1 percent in 2022 to 3.1 percent in 2023. The economic outlook ahead is, however, 
more positive with growth expected to increase to 3.7 percent in 2024 and 4.3 percent in 
2025.  This fact reflects the resilience of African economies; moreover, improvements in global 
economic conditions and effective policy measures may support the growth. Given these, 
Africa will remain the second-fastest growing region globally, with 40 countries set to achieve 
post higher growth rates relative to 2023 levels.

Ethiopia’s economy grew 7.1% in 2022/23, up from 6.4% in 2021/22, led by 7.9% growth in 
the services sector, which accounts for 40.0% of GDP. Industry, at 28.0% of GDP, grew 6.9% 
and agriculture, at 32.0% of GDP, grew 6.3%, also supporting growth. Demand-side drivers of 
growth included private consumption and investment. Although inflation remained high, due to 
money supply growth and imported inflation, it dropped from 34% in 2021/22 to 29.2% in 
2022/23 due to a tightening of monetary policy. The fiscal deficit, including grants, narrowed 
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from 4.2% of GDP in 2021/22 to 3.3% in 2022/23 owing to fiscal consolidation, the peace 
dividend, and improved tax revenues, which grew by 35.8% in 2022/23 compared with 
12.3% in 2021/22. The current account deficit narrowed from 3.9% of GDP in 2021/22 to 
3.0% in 2022/23, due to a 60.3% increase in net services and a 5.3% reduction in imports. 
The financial sector is stable, with nonperforming loans at 3.5% of gross loans and a liquidity 
ratio of 24.2%, against thresholds of 5.0% and 15.0%, respectively. Ongoing reforms to allow 
foreign investment in the sector will increase competition and innovation.

Ethiopia’s structural transformation has been slow. Agriculture’s share of GDP declined from 
54.0% in 2000 to 32.0% in 2023, accounting for 62.8% of employment in 2022 (90.2% in 
1990). The service sector’s share of GDP increased from 37.6% in 2000 to 40.0% in 2023, 
accounting for 30.0% of employment (7.8% in 1990). Industry’s share of GDP increased from 
10.0% in 2000 to 28.8% in 2023, accounting for 7.0% of employment in 2022 (2.0% in 
1990). Manufacturing contributed only 6.9% of GDP in 2023 (2.0% in 2000). Addressing 
macroeconomic imbalances, curbing structural rigidities, easing sectorial bottlenecks in tourism 
and information and communication technologies, and modernizing the financial sector will 
spur structural transformation.

4.2. The Finance Sector in Ethiopia

At the end of June 2023, total assets of the financial sector, i.e., banks, micro finances, capital 
goods finance and insurances, of Ethiopia amounted to Birr 3.12 billion and constituted 
35.8% of the GDP. This figure in Birr is 20.4% higher than that of 2022; when the assets also 
constituted 42.1% of the GDP.
 
The banking industry continues to lead the finance sector with its total assets accounting for 
about 96.3% of the total assets, by the end of June 2023, leaving the total assets in micro 
finance, capital goods finance and insurance industries together having a mere share of only 
for 3.7% of total assets in the sector.

4.3. The Insurance Industry in Ethiopia

At end-June 2024, the insurance industry in Ethiopia consisted of 18 (one state-owned and 
17 private) insurance companies where 12 of them operate on both general and long-term 
insurance and the remaining 6 in general insurance only. There are a total of 799 branches 
throughout the country operated by the 18 insurers.

At the end of June 2024, total assets of the insurance sector stood at Birr 65.8 billion; whereas 
the liabilities, and capital stood at, 43.4 billion and Birr 22.4 billion, respectively. The sector 
generated a sound profit with net profit after tax of over Birr 6 billion Birr, corresponding to 
a return on equity of 25.0% for both general and long-term classes of business. However, 
inflation led to losses on insurers’ fixed income holdings of bank deposits, their largest asset 
class. Five-year average return on investment of the sector was 10.0%1.

1. Financial Stability Report of NBE @April 2024
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Provisional data on the performance of the insurance industry during the reporting period 
indicates that the total Gross Written Premium (GWP) for both general and long-term insurance 
businesses amounted to Birr 28.36 billion; marking a 24.0% increase compared to the 
preceding year where GWP was Birr 22.87 billion. Out of the total GWP, general insurance 
business makes Birr 26.43 billion constituting 93.0% of the sector’s asset, while long term 
insurance business takes share of the remaining Birr 2 billion business making only 7.0% of 
the total. The growth rate of the industry follows a similar trend where experienced business 
growth rates of 48.0% and 22.1% are recorded in general insurance and long-term insurance, 
respectively.

The insurance industry’s total profit after tax raised to Birr 6 billion in the 2023/24 fiscal year 
from what it was in 2022/23, which is Birr 3.6 billion. Hence, scoring a growth by 67.0%. 

This growth was recorded in the industry despite the many challenges it is facing, such as 
the adverse impact of conflicts in certain parts of the country, elevated operating costs due to 
inflation led by floating of currency, undifferentiated insurance products, and a shortage of 
skilled professionals.

At present, there are no insurance companies dedicated exclusively in provision of long-term 
insurance covers. In addition, one locally incorporated Reinsurance Company, 2,894 insurance 
agents, 62 insurance brokers, 117 loss assessors and three Independent Loss Assessors 
are operating in the insurance sector.  Currently, Africa Reinsurance Corporation and PTA 
Reinsurance Company (ZEP-RE), which have considerable presence in the insurance sector, 
have contact offices in Ethiopia. Ethio-Life Insurance Company EliG was   established in 2008 
to provide exclusively long-term insurance, and it became a composite insurer in 2012.
 
4.4.	 Performance review of Ethio Life and General Insurance S.C (EliG)

4.4.1.	Corporate Governance 

The Board of Directors (BoDs) is responsible for overseeing the management of the company and 
providing overall direction to the executive management. Their main objectives are to protect 
shareholders’ interests and contribute to the company’s health, stability, and growth. To ensure 
transparency and accountability, the Board has implemented policies and strategies in all 
aspects of the company’s operations. They also provide strategic guidance to the management 
team.

In adherence to good corporate governance practices and the directives of the National Bank 
of Ethiopia (NBE), the Board has established three committees: Risk Management, Compliance 
and Audit Committee; Human Resource and Facility Management Affairs Committee; and 
Business Development, Finance and Investment sub-Committee. Each Committee; has well-
defined responsibilities and authority, outlined in their terms of reference. They have unrestricted 
access to company information and are authorized to seek independent professional advice 
when necessary. The committees report to the Board through their respective chairpersons at 
each Board meeting.
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In accordance with NBE directive no. 48/2019 article 10.3.2, the Board has conducted eleven 
regular monthly meetings and seven extraordinary meetings during the past year. Additionally, 
the Board committees have held meetings to discuss various issues and tabled proposals, as 
required by NBE directive no. 48/2018 article 10.4.11. During these meetings, the Board has 
addressed strategic and policy matters, as well as provided oversight on corporate concerns 
such as the progress of the five-year strategic plan implementation, the implementation of 
core insurance software, decisions regarding company property, equity, and IT investments, 
development of the company’s paid-up capital, and human resource issues. 

4.4.2. Long-term Insurance Business

Gross Underwriting Premium
 
The 2023/24 fiscal year, the Gross Written Premium (GWP) for Life and Health business 
witnessed a notable surge, reaching Birr  212.1 million (Figure 1). This signifies a substantial 
growth compared to the previous fiscal year, in which the GWP amounted to Birr 124.9 
million. The surge accounts for Birr 87.3 million, indicating a growth rate of 70.0%.

Figure 1. Trend of Gross Written Premium of Long-term Insurance business at Ethio 
Life and General Insurance S.C Since 2019 in Million Birr

 

This remarkable growth in the long-term insurance business can be attributed to two key factors. 
Firstly, we were successful in retaining a substantial portion of our existing customer base 
which played a significant role. This is a testament to the reliable and superior service that our 
company consistently delivers to the insuring public. The trust and satisfaction of our customers 
have resulted in their continued commitment to our services.

Secondly, we achieved success in attracting new individual and corporate clients. This expansion 
of our customer base has further contributed to the overall growth of our business. By offering 
compelling insurance solutions and effectively communicating our value proposition, we were 
able to capture the interest and confidence of new clients. 
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The remarkable achievement in the growth of ELiG’s long-term insurance business is a direct 
result of our commitment to providing dependable and superior service to our customers. It also 
demonstrates the effectiveness of our customer retention strategies and our ability to attract new 
clients in a competitive market.

We remain committed to upholding our high standards of service excellence and continuously 
improving our offerings to ensure that we remain at the forefront of the industry, meeting the 
evolving needs of our valued customers. By prioritizing customer satisfaction and consistently 
delivering on our promises, we have built a favorable image and established a strong reputation 
nationwide. 

Premium Income by Class of Business

Out of the total income the company generated from long-term insurance, 73.0% was from 
Group Health Plan, followed by 24.0% from the Group Life Plan, 2.0% from the Individual Life 
Plan, and 1.0% from the Individual Health Plan (Figure 2).

Figure 2. Premium income by class of business of Long-term Insurance at Ethio Life 
and General Insurance S.C. in 2023/24 fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

 

The above breakdown demonstrates the significance of the Group Health Plan in driving the 
company’s premium income, highlighting the demand for comprehensive health coverage 
among groups.

Claims Management

During the reporting period, the net claims incurred reached Birr 149 million, indicating a 
substantial increase of Birr 80.5 million or 117.0% compared to the previous fiscal year. 



Annual Report 23/24 15

The Gross Loss Ratio for the fiscal year stood at 80.0%, which is 15% higher than that of 
the previous year. It is important to note that the Gross Loss Ratio calculates the total claims 
incurred as a percentage of the Net Earned Premium. The increase in the Gross Loss Ratio can 
be primarily attributed to the significant rise in medical claims.

Moreover, it is noteworthy that the registered Gross Loss Ratio of 80.0% for the reporting year 
was higher than the industry average of 77.0%. This indicates that our company experienced 
a higher proportion of claims compared to the industry’s average.

The Management Expense Ratio

As of June 30, 2024, the Expense Ratio, which represents the ratio of Management Expenses 
to Net Earned Premium, stood at 17.0% (Figure 3). This is a decrease of 2.0% compared to the 
previous fiscal year’s ratio of 19.0%. To ensure efficient operations, increase in premium and 
maintain a healthy expense ratio, it is crucial for our company to closely monitor and manage 
expenses. By implementing cost-control measures, negotiating favorable terms with service 
providers, and exploring opportunities for process optimization, we mitigated the impact of 
inflation on administrative expenses and reduced commission payments against GWP which 
resulted in slight decrease in expense ratio.

Figure 3. Trends in long-term insurance expense ratio in percent at Ethio Life and 
General Insurance S.C. since 2020.

 
Valuation Results

Based on the actuarial evaluation conducted in   June 30, 2024, the Life Fund Value balance 
of the company experienced growth, increasing from birr 88.2 million to Birr 99.8 million, 
representing a growth rate of 13.2%.

During the same period, the actuarial liabilities of the company also increased, rising from 
Birr 78.2 million to Birr 92.2 million. This demonstrates a significant increase of 18.0%. This 
increment in liabilities is expected due to the nature of the life business and long-term death 
risks.
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From the Life Fund balance of Birr 99.8 million, the appointed actuary proposed a dividend 
distribution of  Birr 7.6 million to the shareholders. This dividend represents approximately 
8.0% of the Life Fund revealed in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

The proposed dividend distribution reflects the company’s profitability and the ability to 
distribute a portion of the earnings to the shareholders. However, it is essential to ensure that 
there is a healthy balance between the two aspects of maintaining sufficient funds in the Life 
Fund to meet future obligations and rewarding the shareholders for their investment.

4.4.3. General Insurance Business

Gross Written Premium (GWP)

Despite the challenging business environment in the 2023/24 fiscal year, ELiG managed to 
underwrite a gross premium of Birr  521.9 million. This represents a significant increase of Birr  
117.2 million or 29.0% compared to the previous year (Figure 4). The growth rate of 29.0% 
exceeded the insurance industry’s average of 22.0% by 7.0%, highlighting ELiG’s exceptional 
performance in the market.  This achievement was made possible due to various factors.

Firstly, the company’s improved ability to retain customers played a significant role. By delivering 
reliable and superior service to existing clients, ELiG fostered trust and loyalty, leading to their 
continued commitment to the company’s insurance offerings.

Secondly, ELiG’s focused efforts to penetrate the market, particularly targeting corporate 
customers, contributed to the remarkable growth. By identifying and addressing the specific 
needs of corporate clients, the company was able to attract new business and expand its 
customer base.

These combined efforts resulted in the substantial increase in the General Insurance Gross 
Written Premium, positioning ELiG ahead of the industry average. The company’s ability to 
retain customers and its strategic approach to market penetration has proven effective in driving 
growth and solidifying its position in the insurance industry.

Figure 4:  Gross Written Premium (GWP) in Million Birr and Annual Growth of the 
General Insurance Business at Ethio Life and General Insurance S.C.
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GWP Income by Classes of Business

About 73% of the total GWP is dominated by two classes of business combined, i.e., motor 
and Pecuniary. Motor alone takes the lead with a share of 59% and pecuniary coming second 
with 14.0%. Details of GWP income by class of business are given in Figure 5.  
Figure 5:  GWP Portfolio Mix of Various Classes of Business in Percent at Ethio Life 
and General Insurance S.C. during the fiscal year 2023/24 ending June 30, 2024.

 

Claims Incurred

During the fiscal year covered in this report, the Company incurred net claims of Birr 144.5 
million. This represents an increase of Birr  7 million or 5.0% compared to the previous year. 
The increase in net incurred claims can be attributed to the growth in gross written premium 
and the impact of inflation, which led to higher costs.

Loss Ratio

During 2023/24 fiscal year, the Company’s Loss ratio for the General Insurance Business, 
which compares Incurred Claims to Net Earned Premium, was 42.0% percent. This ratio is 
appreciably lower by 9.0% of the industry average which stood at 51%. The loss ratio is 
below the industry average due to improved claims management activities undertaken by the 
company during the review period.

5. CORPORATE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

5.1. Underwriting Surplus 

Despite the political, social, and economic challenges faced during the 2023/24 fiscal year, 
ELiG successfully achieved an underwriting surplus of Birr 214.2 million. This impressive result 
reflects a significant increase of 90.0% compared to the previous fiscal year’s surplus of Birr 
112.8 million.
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5.2. Expenses

During the reporting period, the Company’s total non-claims (general and administrative) 
expenses amounted to Birr 169.8 million, a 48.0% increase from the preceding year’s level 
of Birr 114.6 million. The rise in expense can be attributed to factors such as rising inflation, 
salary increments for employees, depreciation expenses, expansion of branches and other 
administrative expenses.

5.3. Investment

Investment in equity shares 

During the reporting period, the company increased its investments in various equity shares 
by investing additional equity share of Birr 20.2 million. It allocated additional investments of 
Birr 2.47 million in Addis International Bank, Birr 3.74 million at Bank of Abyssinia, Birr 4.52 
million in Nib Bank, Birr 1.24 million with Ethiopian Reinsurance S.C., Birr 1.25 million to Goh 
Betoch bank, Birr 1 million to Goh Property Development, Birr 0.5 million to National Finance 
Academy, and Birr 441 thousand to Specialized Financial Institution and acquired new share 
amount of Birr 5 million from Dynamic Micro Finance. As of June 30, 2024, the company’s 
total share in investment amounted to Birr 103.3 million, indicating a growth of Birr 20.2 
million or 24.0% compared to the previous year. 

In addition to share equity investment, ELiG also invested Birr 7.04 million in bonds during the 
2023/24 fiscal year and total bond investment stood at Birr 13 million. 

Investment in Properties, Plant and Equipment

During the reporting period, the company allocated Birr 35.9 million towards the acquisition 
of various fixed assets. This includes Birr 30 million for motor vehicles, Birr 2.7 million for 
computers and printers, and Birr 3.2 million for office equipment, furniture, and other items. 
Furthermore, outstanding amounts of Birr 8.5 million for the Kality Recovery Site and Birr 3.4 
million for an IT project were settled during the fiscal year.

As a result of these investments, the company’s net investment in properties and investment 
assets increased to Birr 209.9 million from Birr 179.7 million in the previous year.

5.4. Profitability

In the Life and Health business, the company generated an actuarial surplus of Birr 7.6 million 
during the reporting period and it is proposed to be transferred to shareholders. 

Additionally, the General Insurance business recorded a profit before tax of Birr 101.2 million, 
which shows significant increase of Birr 59.2 million compared to the previous year. Despite 
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an increase in claims, the General business experienced a significant growth in profits due to 
two main factors: an increase in investment income and other operating income by Birr 16.5 
million, increase in underwriting profit by Birr 101.7 million, and a growth in Gross Written 
Premium (GWP) by Birr 117.2 million.

As a result, the company’s consolidated financial statement shows a profit before tax of Birr 
108.8 million, reflecting a growth of Birr 56.7 million or 109.0% compared to the previous 
year. The profit after tax for the fiscal year 2023/24 amounted to Birr 93.9 million, which 
is higher by Birr 44.7 million or 91.0% compared to the previous fiscal year. The earnings 
per share (EPS) for the fiscal year is calculated to be 33.71 %, indicating a 37.0% increase 
compared to the previous fiscal year. 

5.5. Total Assets and Liabilities

The Company’s total asset as at June 30, 2024 stood at Birr 1.36 billion, showing a 33.0% 
increase from last year’s Birr 1.02 billion.

Similarly, total liabilities also increased, rising by 26.0% to Birr 941.7 million from the previous 
year’s liability of Birr 745.4 million. Major variables of the liability are Insurance contract 
liabilities, tax payable, life fund reserve and other payables.

5.6. Shareholders’ Equity

Total Shareholders’ equity in the company stood at Birr 415.1 million, showing a growth of Birr 
135.9 million or 49.0% from the previous year. This growth was predominantly fueled by an 
increase in paid-up capital, which rose by Birr 86.3 million or 39.5% from the preceding year. 
As of June 30, 2024, the Company’s paid-up capital reached Birr 304.5 million. 

6. HIGHLIGHTS OF MAJOR ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

6.1. Human Resources

At EliG, employees are highly valued and considered to be most valuable assets. The human 
resource strategy of the company is designed to enhance employee motivation, productivity 
and performance through various initiatives and procedures. As of June 30, 2024, we have a 
permanent workforce of 282 employees, of which, the majority, 55 percent are female (Figure 
6). The gender mix remained consistent with previous years. During the reporting period, the 
number of employees at the company increased by 28 individuals or 11.0% percent compared 
to that of the previous year.
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Figure 6:  Number of Employees at Ethio Life and General Insurance S.C. 

 

6.2. Branch Expansion 

In the fiscal year 2023/24, we strategically opened two new General Insurance branch 
Offices to expand our presence in different geographical locations. Both of these branches are 
located in Addis Ababa i.e. at Kera and Arat Kilo areas. These areas were selected based on 
recommendations from a feasibility study on the potential of areas for sustainable insurance 
business and their significance to effectively reach business areas of the capital city. With the 
opening of these two new branches, our total number of branch offices has now reached 33, 
an increase from the previous year’s total of 31.

6.3. Implementation of Core Insurance Management System

As part of the company’s plan and its commitment to be in the technology space, full 
implementation of core insurance management system was done in 2023/2024fiscal year. 
This implementation marks a significant milestone in the company’s digital transformation 
journey, streamlining operations, improving efficiency, and enhancing overall service delivery 
to our esteemed clients.

6.4. Update on Purchase of Plot of Land

The acquisition of a 1,800 m2 plot of land, which  commenced in 2019 for the purpose of 
establishing a vehicles wreck yard, has been successfully finalized. This development signifies 
an important step towards the realization of the company’s plans for the site. Getting approval 
of the design work and construction license from government office has been completed 
and an award was given for winner of a bid floated to select a construction company for 
the construction of wreck yard facility during the 2023/24 fiscal year. However, after the 
construction work was started by the contractor as per agreed schedule, the construction has 
been suspended through a court order and the case is now under litigation
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7. THE WAY FORWARD

The current Board of Directors is delighted to witness the company’s consistent growth in several 
key areas, including market share, investment income, profitability and digital transformation 
of operations, as well as the expansion of branch offices and other achievements.

The Board commends progress made in various ongoing initiatives such as developing the 
company’s five-years strategy, ensuring full scale implementation of the core insurance software, 
professional handling of issues pertaining to the vehicles wreck yard construction process, and 
the implementation of prudent risk management practices. All these activities and initiatives 
are under the Board’s supervision and are crucial for the company’s future success and are 
expected to contribute significantly to its overall performance and sustainability.

The Board’s active involvement in these important matters demonstrates its commitment to 
driving the company’s success and ensuring its long-term growth and prosperity

8. VOTE OF THANKS 

We, the Board of Directors of the Company, would like to convey our sincere gratitude to our 
esteemed customers for their unwavering trust in our company. Your support in choosing us to 
safeguard your lives, property, and liability risks has been truly remarkable, and we are deeply 
grateful for it.

We also extend our heartfelt appreciation to all insurance intermediaries and re-insurers for the 
strong and profitable relationships we have maintained throughout the 2023/24 fiscal year. 
Your support has played a vital role in our success, and we highly value the partnership we 
have forged.

Furthermore, we would like to acknowledge the regulatory body for their unwavering support 
in helping us achieve our goals. Your guidance and cooperation have been invaluable, and 
we are indebted to you for your assistance.

Lastly, we express our deep gratitude to our dedicated front-line and support staff, as well as 
the management team. Your unwavering commitment to the company’s success is evident in 
the professional and friendly services you provide to the client. Your hard work and dedication 
have not gone unnoticed, and we are truly grateful for your contributions.

Once again, thank you to all our stakeholders for your continued support. We eagerly anticipate 
a prosperous future together.

Best regards,

Hailu Alemu,
Chairperson, Board of Directors
ELiG, November 16, 2024
Addis Ababa, Ethiopia
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 
ETHIO LIFE AND GENERAL INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY	 				  
										        
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Ethio Life and General Insurance Share Company, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section, the accompanying financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Company as at 30 June 2024, and its financial performance and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs). 

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Company has not implemented IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts which is mandatory for 
preparing its financial statements. This standard became effective on January 1, 2023. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code 
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Management for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control 
as Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Directors either intend to 
liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have no comment to make on the report of the board directors and the proposal for 
distribution of profit submitted by the directors so far as it related to these financial statements 
and pursuant to Article 349 of the Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1234/2021 and hence we 
recommend approval of the financial statements.								     
						    

Tafesse,Shisema and Ayalaw Certified Audit Partnership (TMS PLUS) 
Chartered Certified Accountants (UK)     
Authorized Auditors (Eth)  

Addis Ababa
07 Oct 2024
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1. General Information										       

Ethio Life and General Insurance Company (the Company) Share Company 
(S.C), is a private insurance company domiciled in Ethiopia. The Company was 
established in October 2008 in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial 
Code of Ethiopia 1960 and the National Bank of Ethiopia Directive 746/2012.  
														            
The registered office is at: 											         
ELiG Home of Millions Building										        
Meskel Flower 												          
Addis Ababa													          
											         
The Company is principally engaged in the provision of general and life insurance services to 
clients in Ethiopian market.											         
											         
2. Summary of significant accounting policies  						    
														            
2.1 Introduction to summary of significant accounting policies				  
														            
The principal accounting policies that the Company applies in the preparation of its Financial 
Statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years that 
will be presented, unless otherwise stated.								      
														            
2.2  Basis of preparation										        
	
The Financial Statements year-ended 30 June 2024, have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting 
Standard Board (IASB). Additional information required by National regulations are included 
where appropriate.												          
												          
The financial statements comprise (1) the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
income, (2) the Statement of Financial Position, (3) the Statement of Changes in Equity, (4) the 
Statement of Cash Flows and  (5) the Notes to the Financial Statements.				  
														            
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle 
under the historical cost concept except for financial assets which are measured at amortized 
cost and in accordance with IFRS 4 insurance contract modified as appropriate to comply 
with IFRS frame work. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand, except when otherwise 
indicated. The financial statements are presented in thousands of Ethiopian Birr.
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of 
applying the Company’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant 
impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions changed. Management believes 
that the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Company’s financial statements 
therefore present the financial position and results fairly. The areas involving a higher degree 
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.								      
														            
2.2.1	Going concern 											         
													           
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The management 
have no doubt that the Company would remain in existence after 12 months.			 
														            
2.2.2	Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 	 				  
														            
New standards, Amendments, and Interpretations issued but not yet effective 		
														            
A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for 
annual periods beginning after 30 June 2022, and have not been applied in preparing these 
financial statements. None of these is expected to have a significant effect on the financial 
statements of the Company, except the following set out below:					   
														            
IRFS 9 Financial Instruments										       
													           
IFRS 9, published in July 2014, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and 
measurement of financial instruments, including a new expected credit loss model for calculating 
impairment on financial assets, and the new general hedge accounting requirements. It also 
carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from 
IAS 39. IFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, 
with early adoption permitted.										        
												          
IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity instruments, to be assessed based on a 
combination of the entity’s business model for managing the assets and the instruments’ 
contractual cash flow characteristics. The IAS 39 measurement categories will be replaced 
by: fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVOCI), and amortised cost. IFRS 9 will also allow entities to continue to irrevocably designate 
instruments that qualify for amortised cost or fair value through OCI instruments as FVPL, if 
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency. 	
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Equity instruments that are not held for trading may be irrevocably designated as FVOCI, with 
no subsequent reclassification of gains or losses to the income statement. The accounting for 
financial liabilities will largely be the same as the requirements of IAS 39, except for the treatment 
of gains or losses arising from an entity’s own credit risk relating to liabilities designated at FVPL. 
Such movements will be presented in OCI with no subsequent reclassification to the income 
statement, unless an accounting mismatch in profit or loss would ariess.Having completed its 
initial assessment, the Company has concluded that all financial assets that are classified as 
loans and receivables under IAS 39 are expected to be measured at amortised cost under IFRS 
9 and equity investments will be classified as  FVOCI.							     
												          
However the company elects under the amendment to IFRS 4 to apply the temporarily exemption 
from IFRS 9  due to the company insurance contract liabilities constitute predominantly most 
of its  liabilities there by deferring the initial application date of IFRS 9 to align with the initial 
application of IFRS 17.											         
													           
IFRS 17 – Insurance contracts 									       
													           
IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 and establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective 
of IFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents 
those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the 
effect that insurance contracts have on the entity’s financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows.												          
												          
This standard requires a company that issues insurance contracts to report insurance obligations 
and risks on the balance sheet as the total of:								      
										        
a.	 The fulfilment cash flows—the current estimates of amounts that the insurer expects to collect 

from premiums and pay out for claims,  benefits and expenses, including an adjustment for 
the timing and risk of those cash flows; and								      
													           

b.	 The contractual service margin—the expected profit for providing future insurance coverage 
(i.e. unearned profit).											         
													           

The measurement of the fulfilment cash flows reflects the current value of any interest-
rate guarantees and financial options included in the insurance contracts.		
												          
The standard is set to replace IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’ and will be effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024, with early application permitted.  
 
However, the extensive data requirements needed to implement the standard, along with the 
high costs associated with the calculation engine—software specifically designed to generate 
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IFRS 17 figures—have posed significant challenges. Despite the considerable efforts of the 
Ethiopian Insurance Association, PwC, and all private insurance companies in the country, a 
solution for applying IFRS 17 by the closing year of June 30, 2024, has not yet been reached. 
The implementation process remains ongoing, involving collaboration among the Ethiopian 
Insurance Association, private insurance companies, and the consulting firm PwC.		

2.3 Foreign currency translation	 								      
													           
a) Functional and presentation currency								     
		
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional 
currency and presentation currency of the Company is the Ethiopian Birr.				  
														            
b) Transaction and balances							    

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting 
from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation at exchange 
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Company’s 
functional currency are recognised in profit or loss within other (loss)/ income. Monetary 
items denominated in foreign currency are translated using the closing rate as at the reporting 
date.														            
										        
Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified 
as available for sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in 
the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. 
Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, 
and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.		
														            
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at 
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain 
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets measure at fair value, such as 
equities classified as available for sale, are included in other comprehensive income.		
														            
2.4	 Property, plant and equipment								      
												          
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant 
and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant 
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts 
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. All other repair 
and maintenance costs are recognised in income statement as incurred.	 	
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.							     
														            
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost  to their residual 
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:				  
Asset class   	      Depreciation rate (years)			  Residual value (%) 	
													           
Buildings  				    50			     			   5%		
Lift       				    15						      5%		
Motor vehicles			   10						      5%		
Furniture & fittings			   10						      1%		
Office equipment 			   10						      1%		
Computer equipment  		   7						      1%			 
												          
The company commences depreciation when the asset is available for use.	
													           
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. 
Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in income statement 
when the asset is derecognised.										        
													           
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.			
														            
2.5  Investment property										        
													           
Property that is held by the Company to earn rental income or for capital appreciation, or both, 
and is not occupied by the Company, are classified as investment properties. 	
													           
Recognition of investment properties takes place only when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits that are associated with the investment property will flow to the Company 
and the cost can be reliably measured.  This is usually when all risks are transferred.		
														            
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The Company 
has opted to subsequently carry investment property at cost and disclose fair value. Fair value 
of investment property is the price that would be received from sale of the asset in an orderly 
transaction, without deduction of any transaction costs. Fair value of the Company’s investment 
property is determined by independent qualified Valuer.						    
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Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are 
expensed when incurred. 											         
													           
When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised.												          
												          
The fair value of investment property does not reflect future capital expenditure that will 
improve or enhance the property and does not reflect the related future benefits from this 
future expenditure other than those a rational market participant would take into account when 
determining the value of the property.							     

Earned rental income is recorded in profit or loss for the year within (other operating 
income). 													           
											         
Investment properties are derecognised when they have been disposed.				  
														            
2.6 Intangible assets	 										        
													           
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following 
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised 
development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in income 
statement in the period in which the expenditure is incurred .						    
														            
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible 
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and 
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least 
at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing 
the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes 
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expenses on intangible assets with finite lives is 
presented in income statement.										        
													           
Amortisation is calculated using the straight–line method to write down the cost of intangible 
assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follow:		
													           
Assert Class                                                       Useful life’s (years)			 
Computer software                                                                      8                                	
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2.7. Leases 
									       
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on 
the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset.										        
													           
Company as a lessee											         
													           
Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to 
ownership of the leased items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised 
as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 			
														            
							     
Company as a lessor 											         
													           
Leases where the company does not transfer substantially all of the risk and benefits of ownership 
of the asset are classified as operating lease.   Rental income is recorded as earned based 
on the contractual terms of the lease in other operating income.  					   
														            
The Company has entered into lease of  office building for its branches.  The Company has 
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such 
as the lease term not constituting a substantial portion of the economic life of the commercial 
property, that it does not retain all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these 
properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.						    
														            
2.8. Statutory Deposits											        
													           
Statutory deposits are cash balances held with the National Bank of Ethiopia in line with 
Article 20 of Insurance Business Proclamation No. 746/2012 and may not be withdrawn 
except with the written permission of the National Bank of Ethiopia, or be used as a pledge 
or security for any loan. They have been separately disclosed due to their nature and liquidity. 
Statutory deposits are measured at cost.									       
														            
Statutory deposit represents 15% of the paid up capital of the Company deposited with the 
National bank of Ethiopia	
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2.9. Deferred acquisition costs (DAC)	 							     
	
Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are related to securing new 
contracts and renewing existing contracts are capitalised. All other costs are recognised as 
expenses when incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the life of the contracts. 
 
Deferred acquisition costs represent a portion of commission which are incurred during a financial 
year and are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue margins 
by applying to the acquisition expenses the ratio of unearned premium to written premium.  
 
DACs are derecognised when the related contracts are either settled or disposed of.		
														            
2.10	 Impairment of non-financial assets							     
										        
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset 
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset 
is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) fair value less costs of 
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless 
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets 
or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.	
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate 
valuation model is used.											         
													           
The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations 
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets 
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. 
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash 
flows after the fifth year.											         
													           
An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that 
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication 
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine 
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is 
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the 
income statement.	
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2.11	 Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent 
measurement	
														            
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.							     
														            
2.11.1 Financial assets											         
													           
a) Initial recognition and measurement								      
														            
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets 
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of 
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular 
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset.											         
													           
b) Subsequent measurement										       
													           
For purposes of subsequent measurement of the Company’s financial assets are classified into 
two categories:												          
												          
	 • Loans and receivables										        
	 • Available-for-sale financial investments							     
	
Loans and receivables											         
													           
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less 
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included in interest and similar income in income statement. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in income statement in loan impairment charge.					   
														            
The Company’s loans and receivables comprise of insurance receivables, investment securities 
and other financial assets. Receivables arising from insurance contracts are classified in this 
category and are reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment review of loans and 
receivables.	
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Available-for-sale (AFS) – financial assets	 						    
														            
AFS investments include equity investments. Equity investments classified as AFS are those 
which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or 
loss. 														            
										        
After initial measurement, AFS financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value 
with unrealised gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income and credited in the 
AFS reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is 
recognised in other operating income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when 
the cumulative loss is reclassified from the AFS reserve to income statement in impairment loss 
on financial instruments. Interest earned whilst holding AFS financial investments is reported as 
interest and similar income using the EIR method. Unquoted equity securities whose fair value 
cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost.								     
														            
The Company evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the 
near term is still appropriate. When, the Company is unable to trade these financial assets due 
to inactive markets, the Company may elect to reclassify these financial assets held to maturity 
if the management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for foreseeable future or until 
maturity.													           
											         
‘Day’ 1 Profit or loss											         
													           
‘When the transaction price differs from the fair value of other observable current market 
transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables include 
only data from observable markets, the Company immediately recognises the difference 
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit or loss) in ‘Other operating 
income’. 													           
											         
In cases where fair value is determined using data which is not observable, the difference 
between the transaction price and model value is only recognised in the profit or loss when 
the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.				  
														            
c) Reclassification of financial assets								      
														            
Reclassification is at the election of management, and is determined on an instrument by 
instrument basis. The Company does not reclassify any financial instrument into the fair value 
through profit or loss category after initial recognition.							     
														            
For a financial asset reclassified out of the AFS category, any previous gain or loss on that asset 
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to income statement over the remaining life of 
the investment using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the expected 
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cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is 
subsequently determined to be impaired then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to 
income statement.												          
												          
The Company may reclassify a non–derivative trading asset out of the ‘held–for–trading’ 
category and into the ‘loans and receivables’ category if it meets the definition of loans and 
receivables and the Company has the intention and ability to hold the financial asset for the 
foreseeable future or until maturity. 									       
														            
If a financial asset is reclassified, and if the Company subsequently increases its estimates of 
future cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of 
that increase is recognised as an adjustment to the EIR from date of change in estimate.		
													           
d) De-recognition of financial assets								      
														            
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s statement of 
financial position) when:											         
													           
•	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
•	 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed 

an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 
under a ‘pass–through’ arrangement; and either						    
	

a)  the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or		
														            
b)  the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 
     the asset, but has  transferred control of the asset.	
									       
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks 
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues 
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In 
that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 
Company has retained.											         
													           
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount 
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.						   
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e) Impairment of financial assets									       
														            
The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more 
events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has 
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the Company of financial 
assets that can be reliably estimated. 									       
														            
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is 
experiencing significant financial difficulty, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or 
other financial reorganisation, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments and 
where observable data indicates that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash 
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.		
													           
i. Financial assets carried at amortized cost							     
													           
For financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as loans and receivables), the Company 
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets 
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually 
significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an 
individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with 
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are 
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, 
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.					  
														            
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the 
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been 
incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account 
and the amount of the loss is recognised in income statement. Interest income continues to 
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to 
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.		
	
The interest income is recorded as part of ‘Interest and similar income’. Loans together with the 
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and 
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Company. If, in a subsequent 
year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment 
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write–off is later 
recovered, the recovery is credited to the ’loan impairment charge’.	
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The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original 
EIR. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss 
is the current EIR.												          
												          
The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised 
financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining 
and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.					   
														            
For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the 
basis of the Company’s internal credit grading system, that considers credit risk characteristics 
such as asset type, industry, geographical location, collateral type, past–due status and other 
relevant factors.												          
												          
Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment 
are estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics 
similar to those in the Company.										        
													           
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the 
effects of current conditions on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the 
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently. Estimates of changes in 
future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent with, changes in related observable 
data from year to year (such as changes in unemployment rates, property prices, commodity 
prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the Company 
and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash 
flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss 
experience.													           
											         
ii. Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets	 						    
														            
AFS financial assets are impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment, resulting from 
one or more loss events that occurred after initial recognition but before the reporting date, that 
have an impact on the future cash flows of the asset. In addition, an available-for-sale equity 
instrument is generally considered impaired if a significant or prolonged decline in the fair 
value of the instrument below its cost has occurred. Where an available-for-sale asset, which 
has been re-measured to fair value directly through equity, is impaired, the impairment loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. If any loss on the financial asset was previously recognised directly 
in equity as a reduction in fair value, the cumulative net loss that had been recognised in equity 
is transferred to profit or loss and is recognised as part of the impairment loss. The amount 
of the loss recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost and the 
current fair value, less any previously recognised impairment loss.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount relating to an impairment loss decreases and the decrease 
can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, 
where the instrument is a debt instrument, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or 
loss. An impairment loss in respect of an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale is not 
reversed through profit or loss but accounted for directly in equity.					   
														            
2.11.2 Financial liabilities										        
													           
a) Initial recognition and measurement								      
									       
All financial liabilities of the Company are classified as other financial liabilities at amortised cost. 
 
All financial liabilities recognised initially at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction 
costs and include insurance payables, dividend payables and other account payables. 		
														            
b) Subsequent measurement									      
	
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:	
													           
c) Financial liabilities at amortised cost								      
												          
These are financial liabilities issued by the Company, that are not designated at fair value 
through profit or loss but are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost, where the 
substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company having an obligation either 
to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by 
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own 
equity shares. 												          
												          
After initial measurement, financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured 
at amortised  cost using the EIR. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on the issue and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 
 
All financial liabilities of the Company are  carried at amortised cost.	
														            
d) Derecognition of financial liabilities								      
													           
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they have been redeemed or otherwise 
extinguished.	
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2.11.3 Offsetting financial liabilities	
													           
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of 
financial position where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised 
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. The legal enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in event of default, insolvency 
or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.							     
														            
2.12	 Reinsurance assets							     

The Company cedes business to reinsurers in the normal course of business for the purpose of 
limiting its net loss potential through the transfer of risks as described in note 2.15. Premium 
ceded comprise gross written premiums. Reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company 
from its direct obligations to its policy holders.							     
													           
Reinsurance assets are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized 
according to the terms of the relevant contract. The Company has the right to set off reinsurance 
payables against amounts due from reinsurers in line with the agreed arrangements between 
both parties.													           
											         
2.13	 Other assets											         
													           
Other assets are generally defined as claims held against other entities for the future receipt of 
money or other benefits. The other assets in the Company’s financial statements include: sundry 
debtors, staff debtors and deposits.									       
											         
The Company’s other receivables are rent receivables, staff debtors and other account 
receivables.													           
											         
a) Prepayments												          
												          
Prepayments are payments made in advance for services to be enjoyed in future. The amount 
is initially capitalized in the reporting period in which the payment is made and subsequently 
amortised over the period in which the service is to be enjoyed.					   
														            
b) Other receivables	 										        
													           
Other receivables are recognised upon the occurrence of event or transaction as they arise and 
cancelled when payment is received. The Company’s other receivables are staff debtors and 
sundry debtors.	
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2.14	 Cash and cash equivalents	 						    
												          
Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from 
the date of acquisition, including cash in hand, deposits held at call with Banks and 
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 
 
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include  cash in hand, 
cash at bank, short term deposit with banks.								      
														            
	
2.15	 Insurance contracts	 									       
														            
Classification												          
												          
The Company enters into insurance contracts as its primary business activity. Insurance 
contracts are those that the Company accepts significant insurance risk from another party 
(the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary, if a 
specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder or the 
other beneficiary. The Company as a guide defines significant insurance risk as the possibility 
of having to pay benefit on the occurrence of an insured event that is at least 10% more than 
the benefit payable if the insured event did not occur.							     
														            
The Company’s insurance contracts are classified into two main categories, depending on the 
duration of risk.												          
												          
i. Non-life insurance contracts									       
														            
These contracts are accidents and casualty and property insurance contracts. 			 
														            
Accidents and casualty insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers against the risk of 
causing harm to third parties as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include 
both contractual and non-contractual events. The typical protection offered is designed for 
employers who become legally liable to pay compensation to injured employees (employers’ 
liability) and for individual and business customers who become liable to pay compensation to 
a third party for bodily harm or property damage (public liability).					   
												          
Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers for damage suffered 
to their properties or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial 
activities on their premises could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by 
the inability to use the insured properties in their business activities.					   
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ii. Life insurance contracts										        
													           
These contracts insure events associated with human life (for example, death or survival) over 
a long duration. 												          
												          
In addition, the Company has short-term life insurance contracts which protect the Company’s 
policyholders from the consequences of events (such as death or disability) that would affect 
the ability of the insured or his/ her dependants to maintain their current level of income. 
Guaranteed benefits paid on occurrence of the specified insurance event are either fixed or 
linked to the extent of the economic loss suffered by the insured or the beneficiary. There are 
no maturity or surrender benefits.										        
												          
2.16	 Liability adequacy test									      
													           
Liability adequacy test at each end of the reporting period, liability adequacy tests are 
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities net of related DAC. In performing 
these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and 
administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such liabilities, 
are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to profit or loss initially by writing off DAC 
and by subsequently establishing a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests (the 
unexpired risk provision).											         
													           
As set out note 4.2, life insurance contracts are measured based on assumptions set out at 
the inception of the contract. When the liability adequacy test requires the adoption of new 
best estimate assumptions, such assumptions (without margins for adverse deviation) are used 
for the subsequent measurement of these liabilities. Any DAC written off as a result of this test 
cannot subsequently be reinstated.										       
													           
2.17	 Reinsurance contracts held	 								      
												          
Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is compensated 
for losses on one or more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification 
requirements for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts 
that do not meet these classification requirements are classified as financial assets. Insurance 
contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is another insurer 
(inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts.						    
												          
The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised 
as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well 
as longer term receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising 
under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers 
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are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contracts 
and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are 
primarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when 
due.														            
										        
In certain cases, a reinsurance contract is entered into retrospectively to reinsure a notified 
claim under the Company’s property or casualty insurance contracts. Where the premium due 
to the reinsurer differs from the liability established by the Company for the related claim, the 
difference is amortised over the estimated remaining settlement period.				  
														            
The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on a quarterly basis. If there is 
objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying 
amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss 
in the income statement. The Company gathers the objective evidence that a reinsurance asset 
is impaired using the same process adopted for financial assets held at amortised cost. The 
impairment loss is calculated following the same method used for these financial assets.		
														            
2.18	 Deferred income											        
													           
Deferred income represents a portion of commission received on reinsurance contracts which 
are booked during the financial year and are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable 
out of future revenue margins. It is calculated by applying the reinsurance commission income 
to the ratio of prepaid reinsurance to reinsurance cost. Receivables and payables related to 
insurance contracts												          
												          
2.19	 Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts and investment 
contracts												          
	
Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include amounts due to 
and from agents, brokers and insurance contract holders. If there is objective evidence 
that the insurance receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount 
of the insurance receivable accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in the 
income statement. The Company gathers the objective evidence that an insurance 
receivable is impaired using the same process adopted for loans and receivables. 
 
The impairment loss is calculated under the same method used for these financial assets.		
														            
2.19.1 Salvage and subrogation reimbursements	
												          
Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually damaged) property 
acquired in settling a claim (for example, salvage). the Company may also have the 
right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). 
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Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the 
insurance liability for claims, and salvage property is recognised in other assets when the 
liability is settled. The allowance is the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the 
disposal of the property.											         
													           
Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the measurement of the 
insurance liability for claims and are recognised in other assets when the liability is settled. The 
allowance is the assessment of the amount that can be recovered from the action against the 
liable third party.												          
												          
2.20	 Revenue recognition	 									       
													           
A) Gross premiums											         
													           
Gross recurring premiums on life and investment contracts with DPF are recognised as revenue 
when received from  the policyholder. For single premium business, revenue is recognised on 
the date on which the policy is effective. Gross general insurance written premiums comprise 
the total premiums receivable for the whole period of cover provided by contracts entered into 
during the reporting period. They are recognised on the date on which the policy commences. 
Premiums include any adjustments arising in the reporting period for premiums receivable in 
respect of business written in prior accounting periods. Rebates that form part of the premium 
rate, such as no claim rebates, are deducted from the gross premium; others are recognised as 
an expense. Premiums collected by intermediaries, but not yet received, are assessed based on 
estimates from underwriting or past experience and are included in premiums written.		
														            
Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods 
of risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated using the 1/24th method 
as prescribed by Licensing and Supervision of Insurance Business Directive No SIB/17/98. 
The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned 
premiums.													           
											         
B) Reinsurance premiums									       
	
Gross outward reinsurance premiums on life and investment contracts are recognised as an 
expense on the earlier of the date when premiums are payable or when the policy becomes 
effective. 													           
											         
Gross general reinsurance premiums ceded comprise the total premiums payable for the whole 
cover provided by contracts entered into in the period and are recognised on the date on 
which the policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in 
respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.				  
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Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums ceded in a year that relate 
to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over 
the term of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks-attaching contracts and over the 
term of the reinsurance contract for losses- occurring contracts.						   
												          
Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been 
presented as negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because 
this is consistent with how the business is managed.							     
									       
C) Fee and commission income									       
														            
Insurance contract policyholders are charged for policy administration services, surrenders and 
other contract fees. These fees are recognised as revenue over the period in which the related 
services are performed. If the fees are for services provided in future periods, then they are 
deferred and recognised over those future periods.							     
													           
D) Deferred income											         
													           
Deferred income represents a portion of commission received on reinsurance contracts which 
are booked during the financial year and are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable 
out of future revenue margins. It is calculated by applying the reinsurance commission income 
to the ratio of prepaid reinsurance to reinsurance cost. Receivables and payables related to 
insurance contracts.												          
												          
E)  Investment income											         
													           
Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated 
by using the EIR method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective 
yield of the financial asset are recognised as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument. 
 
Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established, 
which is generally when the shareholders approve and declare the dividend.				 
						    
F) Dividend income											         
													           
This is recognised when the company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is 
generally when the shareholder approve and declare the dividend.					   
					   
2.21	 Gross benefits and claims									       
													           
Gross benefits and claims for life insurance contracts and for investment contracts with 
DPF include the cost of all claims arising during the year, including internal and external 
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claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims and 
policyholder bonuses declared on DPF contracts. Changes in the gross valuation of insurance 
and investment contract liabilities with DPF are also included. Death claims and surrenders are 
recorded on the basis of notifications received. Maturities and annuity payments are recorded 
when due.													           
											         
General insurance and health claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether 
reported or not, related internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related 
to the processing and settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other 
recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.				  
						    
2.22	 Reinsurance claims	 									       
													           
Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised 
according to the terms of the relevant contract.								      
														            
2.23  Finance costs	 										        
													           
Interest paid is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by 
using the EIR method. Accrued interest is included within the carrying value of the interest 
bearing financial liability.											         
													           
2.24	 Underwriting expenses									       
														            
Underwriting expenses are made up of acquisition and maintenance expenses comprising 
commission and policy expenses and other direct costs.							    
														            
Underwriting expenses for insurance contracts are recognized as expense when incurred, 
with the exception of acquisition costs which are recognized on a time apportionment basis in 
respect of risk.												          
												          
2.25	 Employee benefits										        
	
A) Wages, salaries  and annual leave								      
													           
Wages, salaries, bonuses, other contributions, paid annual leave and sick leave are accrued 
in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Company. 	
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B) Defined contribution plan									      
													           
The company operates two defined contribution plan :							     
												          
i.	 pension scheme in line with the provisions of Ethiopian pension of private organisation 

employees proclamation  715/2011.  Funding under the scheme is 7% and 11% by 
employees and the Company respectively.							     
	

Once the contributions have been paid, the Company retains no legal or constructive obligation 
to pay further contributions if the Fund does not hold enough assets to finance benefits accruing 
under the retirement benefit plan. The Company’s obligations are recognized in the profit and 
loss account.													           
											         
C) Defined benefit obligation										       
													           
The Company operates a defined benefit severance scheme in Ethiopia, where members of 
staff who have spent 5 years or more in employment are entitled to benefit payments upon 
resignation. The benefit payments are based on final emolument of staff and length of service. 
A defined benefit plan is not a defined contribution plan. Typically defined benefit plans 
define an amount of gratuity benefit that an employee will receive on resignation. 		
													           
The liability recognised in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. 
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the 
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined 
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using the market rates on government bonds 
that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.		
														            
Employer’s contributions to this scheme are charged to profit or loss in the year in which they 
relate.														           
										        
Re-measurement gain and loss arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in 
which they arise.												          
												          
Current service and interest cost are included as part of employee benefit expense in the profit 
or loss. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.					  
												          
Gains or losses on curtailment or settlement are recognised in profit or loss when the curtailment 
or settlement occurs.	
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Fair value measurement										        
														            
The Company measures financial instruments classified as available-for-sale at fair value at 
each statement of financial position date. Fair value related disclosures for financial instruments 
and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value or where fair values are disclosed are, 
summarised in the following notes:										       
										        
•	 Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions Note 4.8.1 and 

Notes 3													           
											         

•	 Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy Note 4.8.2				  
												          

•	 Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) Note 4.8.3			 
												          

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either:											         
													           
•	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or						    

	
•	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability.													           
											         

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.		
												          
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest.											         
													           
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.							     
														            
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:					   
		
•	 Level  1 —    Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities.		
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•	 Level  2  —   Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 						   
		

•	 Level  3  —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is  unobservable.								      
	

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by 
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.						   
														            
The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair 
value measurement, such as available-for-sale financial assets.						   
														            
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the 
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.							     
														            
2.26	 Provisions												          
												          
Provisions are recognised when the  Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be 
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a 
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a 
provision is presented in income statement net of any reimbursement.					   
														            
					   
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is 
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as other operating 
expenses.													           
											         
2.27	 Share capital	 										        
													           
The Company classifies ordinary shares as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash 
or other assets. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are recognized 
as deductions from equity, net of tax, from the proceeds. The excess of the issue price over the 
par value is recorded in the share premium reserve.	
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2.28	 Legal reserves											         
													           
In accordance with Article 22 sub article 1 - 2 of Insurance Business Proclamation No 746/12, 
the Company, at the end of each financial year, transfers to its legal reserve to account a sum 
of not less than 10% of profit. When the legal reserve becomes equal to 15% the paid-up 
capital of the Company, the amount of the legal reserve to be retained by the Company each 
year from its net profit shall be determined by NBE’s directive.						   
													           
2.29 	Earnings per share										        
	
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares.  
Basic EPS are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of 
the Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.		
												          
2.30	  Income taxation											        
													           
A) Current income tax											         
													           
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s 
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax 
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.			 
														            
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively 
enacted at the end of the reporting period in Ethiopia. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is 
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.									      
											         
B) Deferred tax												          
												          
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax 
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred tax 
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting 
nor taxable profit or loss.											         
													           
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when 
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. 
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Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit 
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.				  
												          
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities 
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity 
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.	
														            
2.31	  Borrowing Costs										       
												          
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition construction or production of 
a qualifying asset form part of the cost of that asset.  Other borrowing costs are recognised 
as an expense. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection 
with the borrowing of funds.  IAS 23 provides guidance on how to measure borrowing costs, 
particularly when the costs of acquisition, construction or production are funded by an entity’s 
general borrowings.												         
												          
Period of capitalization										        
													           
Capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset begins when the 
entity first meets all of the following conditions (commencement of capitalization) (IAS23.17 
and 23.19):													           
											         
Expenditures for the asset are incurred.

Borrowing costs are incurred.

Activities have started that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.	
													           
Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during extended periods in which the entity 
suspends active development of a qualifying asset (suspension of capitalization) (IAS 23.20–
23.21). During this period of time the borrowing costs are recognized as an expense. 
Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all activities necessary to prepare 
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete (cessation of capitalization) (IAS 
23.22–23.23). It may be the case that an entity completes the construction of a qualifying 
asset in parts and each part is capable of being used while construction continues on other 
parts (e.g. the construction of a business park consisting of several buildings). In this case, 
the capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the entity completes substantially all the 
activities necessary to prepare that part for its intended use or sale (IAS 23.24)			 
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3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions	 		
													           
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, 
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that 
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future 
periods													           
											         
Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:		
														            
								      
•	 Capital management Note 4.7	
•	 Financial risk management and policies Note 4.3
•	 Sensitivity analyses disclosures Note 4.2								      

											         
3.1. Judgements												          
												          
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the 
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements:												         
												          
3.2 Estimates and assumptions									       
	
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation at the 
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.  
 
The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial 
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances beyond the control of the 
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.				  
								      
a) Valuation of insurance contract liabilities	

Life insurance contract liabilities								      
	
The liability for life insurance contracts is either based on current assumptions or on assumptions 
established at the inception of the contract, reflecting the best estimate at the time together with 
a margin for risk and adverse deviation. All contracts are subject to a liability adequacy test, 
which reflect management’s best current estimate of future cash flows.					  
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These liabilities are estimated using appropriate and acceptable base tables of standard mortality 
according to the type of contract being written. Management make various assumptions such 
as expenses inflation, valuation interest rate and mortality in estimating the required liabilities 
for life contracts.												          
												          
Non-life insurance contract liabilities								      
													           
For non-life insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost 
of claims reported at the reporting date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred, 
but not yet reported, at the reporting date (IBNR). It can take a significant period of time before 
the ultimate claims cost can be established with certainty and for some type of policies, IBNR 
claims form the majority of the liability in the statement of financial position.				  
														            
The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a standard actuarial claims 
projection techniques, Chain Ladder.									       
														            
The main assumption underlying these techniques is that a Company’s past claims development 
experience can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. 
As such, these methods extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses, average 
costs per claim and claim numbers based on the observed development of earlier years and 
expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years, but 
can also be further analysed by geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and 
claim types. In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims 
inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit in the historical claims 
development data on which the projections are based. 							    
														            
Similar judgements, estimates and assumptions are employed in the assessment of adequacy 
of provisions for unearned premium.									       
											         
b) Impairment losses on Loans and  receivables						    
													           
The Company assesses at the end of every reporting period whether there is any objective 
evidence that its loans and receivables are impaired. The Company determines whether 
impairment losses are incurred if and only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a 
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the receivable (a loss 
event) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the 
receivable that can be reliably estimated, or a trigger event is identified. 
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c) Fair value  measurement of financial instruments						   
														            
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of 
financial position cannot be  measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair 
value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. 
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is 
not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include 
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions 
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 			 
														            
d) Income taxes											         
	
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax 
laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the long-term nature and 
complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results 
and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future 
adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The amount of such provisions is 
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations 
of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.				  
														            
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management 
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax 
planning strategies.	

4. Insurance and financial risk management							     
			 
4.1	 Introduction	
									       
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including insurance risk, 
financial risk, credit risk, and interest rates risk.  The Company’s overall risk management 
programme focuses on the identification and management of risks and seeks to minimise 
potential adverse effects on its financial performance, by use of underwriting guidelines and 
capacity limits, reinsurance planning, credit policy governing the acceptance of clients, and 
defined criteria for the approval of intermediaries and reinsurers.  Investment policies are in 
place, which help manage liquidity, and seek to maximise return within an acceptable level of 
interest rate risk.
										        
The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the 
environment, technology and industry. The Company’s policy is to monitor those business risks 
through the  Company’s strategic planning process.
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4.1.1	Risk management structure	 								      
	
The Board of Directors (The Board) is responsible for the overall risk encountered by the 
Company.  The Board is responsible to develop comprehensives risk management program and 
policies of the Company. The Board has an oversight role on the proper implementation of the 
Company’s risk management program or policies.  The Board monitors proper implementation 
policies through various reports.									       
	
The Senior Management has the overall responsibility for the proper execution and interpretation 
of the risk strategy and implementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits. It is also 
responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels and deliberate on reports to 
the Board regarding risk management issues and give timely directions.				  
						    
The Risk Management Unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related 
procedures, independently assesses and monitor the level of risk assumed by the Company. 
Besides, the Risk Management Unit is responsible for monitoring compliance with risk principles, 
policies and limits across the Company. It carries out an assessment of risk on  periodic basis 
to monitor the Company’s overall risk, including monitoring the risk of exposures against limits 
and the assessment of risks of new products and structured transactions.  				  
						    
Exceptions are reported, where necessary, to the Board’s Risk Committee and the relevant actions 
are taken to address exceptions and any areas of weakness.   The unit works closely with the 
Management Risk Committees to ensure that procedures are compliant with the overall framework.   
The unit is functionally responsible to the Board.  The risk management has also reporting 
relationship with internal audit function.  Internal audit function among others ensures the 
effectiveness of the risk management function periodically. Internal Audit Function discusses the 
results of its assessments with management, and reports its findings and recommendations to 
the Board Audit Committee.										       
The Company’s Finance department manager is responsible for managing the financial assets, 
financial liabilities and the overall financial structure. It is also primarily responsible for the 
funding and liquidity risks of the Company.								      
		
4.1.2	Risk measurement and reporting systems						    
				  
The Company’s risks are measured using methods that reflect both the expected loss likely to 
arise in normal circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate 
actual loss based on statistical model. The models make use of probabilities derived from 
historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment. 					   
					   
Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the  
Company. These limits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Company 

ETHIO LIFE AND GENERAL INSURANCE S.C.
Notes to The Financial Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024



Annual Report 23/24 61

as well as the level of risk that the Company is willing to accept, with additional emphasis 
on selected regions. In addition, the Company measures and monitor the overall risk bearing 
capacity in relation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risk types and activities.		
														            
4.1.3	Risk mitigation
										        
The Company uses various risk mitigating techniques to reduce it’s risk to the 
level acceptable. Risk controls and mitigants, identified and approved for 
the Company, are documented for existing and new  processes and systems. 
 
Risk control processes are identified and discussed in the quarterly risk report of the Risk 
Committee meetings. Control processes are also regularly reviewed and changes agreed with 
the Board.										        
											         
4.2	 Insurance risk	
									       
The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and 
benefit payments or the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the 
frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of 
long–term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves 
are available to cover these liabilities.									       
	
The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts 
and geographical areas. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and 
implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance 
arrangements. the Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. 	
									       
Reinsurance ceded is placed on both a proportional and non–proportional basis. The majority 
of proportional reinsurance is quota–share reinsurance which is taken out to reduce the overall 
exposure of the Company to certain classes of business. Non–proportional reinsurance is 
primarily excess–of–loss reinsurance designed to mitigate the Company’s net exposure to 
catastrophe losses. Retention limits for the excess–of–loss reinsurance vary by product line.		
								      
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding 
claims provision and are in accordance with the reinsurance contracts. Although the Company 
has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its policyholders 
and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to ceded insurance, to the extent that any 
reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreements.  
 
The Company’s placement of reinsurance is diversified such that it is neither dependent on 
a single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company substantially dependent upon any 
single reinsurance contract. 									       
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4.2.1	Life insurance contracts									       
	
Life insurance contracts offered by the Company include: Individual riders, group term, group medical, 
group riders, endowment assurance, education endowments and individual mortgage protection. 
The main risks that the Company is exposed to are as follows:						   
				  
•	 Mortality risk – risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being different than 

expected	
									       
•	 Morbidity risk – risk of loss arising due to policyholder health experience being different 

than expected	
									       
•	 Longevity risk – risk of loss arising due to the annuitant living longer than expected		

								      
•	 Investment return risk – risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than 

expected	
									       
•	 Expense risk – risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected	

									       
•	 Policyholder decision risk – risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences (lapses and 

surrenders) being different than expected.								      
		

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the Company 
and type of risk insured.	
									       
The Company’s underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified in 
terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through the use of 
medical screening in order to ensure that pricing takes account of current health conditions 
and family medical history, regular review of actual claims experience and product pricing, as 
well as detailed claims handling procedures.								      
	
Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. For example, the 
Company has the right not to renew individual policies. Insurance contracts also entitle the 
Company to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs.					   
					   
Key assumptions
										        
Material judgment is required in determining the liabilities and in the choice of assumptions. 
Assumptions in use are based on past experience, current internal data, external market 
indices and benchmarks which reflect current observable market prices and other published 
information. Assumptions and prudent estimates are determined at the date of valuation and no 
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credit is taken for possible beneficial effects of voluntary withdrawals. Assumptions are further 
evaluated on a continuous basis in order to ensure realistic and reasonable valuations.		
								      
The key assumptions to which the estimation of liabilities is particularly sensitive are, as 
follows:										        
											         
Mortality and morbidity rates									       
	
Assumptions are based on standard industry, according to the type of contract written. They 
reflect recent historical experience and are adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Company’s 
own experiences. An appropriate, but not excessive, prudent allowance is made for expected 
future improvements. An increase in rates will lead to a larger number of claims (and claims 
could occur sooner than anticipated), which will increase the expenditure and reduce profits 
for the shareholders.	
									       
Longevity

Assumptions are based on standard industry, adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Company’s 
own risk experience. An appropriate, but not excessive, prudent allowance is made for expected 
future improvements. Assumptions are differentiated by sex, underwriting class and contract type.  
 
An increase in longevity rates will lead to an increase in the number of annuity payments 
made, which will increase the expenditure and reduce profits for the shareholders.			 
							     
Expenses
										        
Operating expenses assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing 
in–force policies and associated overhead expenses. The current level of expenses is taken 
as an appropriate expense base, adjusted for expected expense inflation if appropriate.  
 
An increase in the level of expenses would result in an increase in expenditure, thereby reducing 
profits for the share holders.									       

Policyholder decision (lapses and surrender)							     
			 
Policy termination assumptions are determined using statistical measures 
based on the Company’s experience and vary by product type.  
An increase in lapse rates early in the life of the policy would tend to reduce profits for 
shareholders to the un-recouped initial expenses.	
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Discount rate	
									       
Life insurance liabilities are determined as the sum of the discounted value of the expected 
benefits and future administration expenses directly related to the contract, less the discounted 
value of the expected theoretical premiums that would be required to meet these future cash 
outflows. Discount rates are based on current industry risk rates, adjusted for the Company’s 
own risk exposure.	

4.2.2	Non- life insurance contracts									      
	
The Company principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts: Property 
insurance, Engineering insurance, Pecuniary insurance and  Liability insurance.  Risks under 
non–life insurance policies usually cover twelve months duration.					   
					   
For general insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from accidents. These risks do 
not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the Company, type of 
risk insured and by industry. The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large 
portfolio of insurance contracts.									       
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Key assumptions
										        
The principal assumption underlying the liability estimates is that the Company’s future claims 
development will follow a similar pattern to past claims development experience. This includes 
assumptions in respect of average claim costs, claim handling costs, claim inflation factors and 
claim numbers for each accident year. 									       
	
Additional qualitative judgements are used to assess the extent to which past trends may not 
apply in the future, for example: one–off occurrence; changes in market factors such as public 
attitude to claiming, economic conditions, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, 
policy conditions and claims handling procedures. Judgement is further used to assess the 
extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the 
estimates. 
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Sensitivities	
									       
The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions 
with all other assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, 
profit before tax and equity. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in 
determining the ultimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in 
assumptions, assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis.					  
					   
It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are non–linear. 	 			 
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4.3	 Financial risk	
									       
Financial instruments by category 									      
	
The Company’s financial assets are classified into the following measurement 
categories: Available-for-sale and loans and receivables and the 
financial liabilities are classified into other liabilities at amortised cost. 
Financial instruments are classified in the statement of financial position in accordance with 
their legal form and substance. 			   						    
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4.4	 Credit risk
										        
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a 
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the 
Company’s investment portfolio, long term staff loans and the reliance on reinsurers to make 
payment when certain loss conditions are met.								      
		
For risk management reporting purposes, the Company considers and consolidates all elements 
of credit risk exposure.
										        
The Company’s credit risk policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes 
credit risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and 
breaches are reported to the Company’s risk and compliance unit. The policy is regularly 
reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.					   
					   
The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to 
credit risk:	

									       
a.	 The Company’s risk management policy sets out the assessment and determination of what 

constitutes credit risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored, exposures 
and breaches are reported to the Company’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed 
for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.						    
				  

b.	 Net exposure limits are set for each counterparty or company of counterparties and industry 
segment (i.e. limits are set for investments and cash deposits)					   
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c.	 The Company further restricts its credit risk exposure by entering into master netting 
arrangements with counterparties with which it enters into significant volumes of transactions. 
However, such arrangements do not generally result in an offset of balance sheet assets 
and liabilities, as transactions are usually settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk 
associated with such balances is reduced in the event of a default, when such balances 
are settled on a net basis. The Company’s reinsurance treaty contracts involve netting 
arrangements.	

									       
d.	 Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration 

of risk is avoided by following policy guidelines in respect of counterparties limits that are 
set each year by the management and are subject to regular reviews. At each reporting 
date, management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates 
the reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment. 		
								      

4.4.1	Credit quality analysis									      
	
a) Cash and cash equivalents									       
	
The credit quality of cash and bank balances and short term investments are neither past due 
or impaired as at 30 June 2023 and are non-rated as they are held in Ethiopian Banks. There 
are no credit rating agencies in Ethiopia. The Company has no cash and cash equivalents that 
are held in foreign banks.										        
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4.4.2	Credit Concentrations									       
	
The  Company monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector, location and purpose. An 
analysis of concentrations of credit risk at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2024. The  Company 
concentrates all its financial assets in Ethiopia.		  						    
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4.5	 Liquidity risk	
									       
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet its maturing obligations when they 
become due, at reasonable cost and in a timely manner. Liquidity risk arises because of the 
possibility that the Company might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall 
due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress 
circumstances. Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for illiquid asset positions is 
not available to the Company on acceptable terms.							     
			 
Liquidity risk management in the Company is solely determined by Risk Management and 
Compliance Unit, which bears the overall responsibility for liquidity risk. The main objective of 
the Company’s liquidity risk framework is to maintain sufficient liquidity in order to ensure that 
we meet our maturing obligations.										       
									       
4.5.1	Management of liquidity risk								      
		
Cash flow forecasting is performed by the finance department. The finance department monitors 
rolling forecasts of liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational 
needs.	
									       
The Company evaluates its ability to meet its obligations on an ongoing basis. Based on these 
evaluations, the Company devises strategies to manage its liquidity risk.				  
						    
Prudent liquidity risk management implies that sufficient cash is maintained and that sufficient 
funding is available to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risk damage to the Company’s reputation.			
							     
4.5.2	Maturity analysis of financial liabilities							     
			 
The table below analyses the  Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings 
based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual 
maturity date. The cash flows presented are the undiscounted amounts to be settled in future.	
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4.6	 Market risk
										        
“Market risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market risk factors  such as interest rates, 
foreign exchange rates, equity prices, credit spreads and their volatilities. Market risk 
can arise in conjunction with trading and non-trading activities of a financial institutions.  
 
The  Company does not ordinarily engage in trading activities as there are no active markets 
in Ethiopia. “										       
											         
4.6.1	Monitoring of market risk									       
	
Market risk is monitored by the risk management department on regularly, to identify any 
adverse movement in the underlying variables.								      
		
Theoretically, this risk is the risk of loses arising from volatility in the prices of stock and variable 
income investment, functions in real estate values, changes in interest rates and reinvestment 
risk.  In the Ethiopian insurance industry context, this risk can only be assessed from Nye’s 
Directive ISD/25/2004 which requires insurance companies to follow prudent proactive that 
give due consideration to diversification, liquidity, safety of investment of insurance funds		
								      
(i) Interest rate risk										        
											         
“Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial 
instrument will be affected by changes in market interest rates.  
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The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 
primarily to it’s financial obligations and financial assets with fixed interest rates. The 
Company’s investment portfolio is comprised of cash deposits and investment security  
 
The table below sets out information on the exposures to fixed and variable interest 
instruments.”										        

(ii) Foreign exchange risk									       
	
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange rates.  The Company primarily transacts 
in Ethiopian Birr and its assets and liabilities are denominated in the same currency. The 
Company is therefore not exposed to currency risk. 							     
			 
4.7	 Capital management	 								      
	
The  Company’s objectives when managing capital are to comply with the capital requirements 
set by the National Bank of Ethiopia, safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, and 
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to maintain a strong capital base  so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence 
and to sustain future development of the business.  							     
			 
4.7.1	  ‘Margin of Solvency ratio	 								      
	
(i) Non life business	
									       
According to the Licensing and Supervision of Insurance Business Margin of Solvency (MOS) 
Directives No. SIB/45/2016 of the National Bank of Ethiopia, an insurer carrying on general 
business shall keep admitted capital amounting to the highest of 25% of its technical provisions, 
or 20% of the net written premiums in the last preceding financial year, or the minimum 
paid capital. An insurer carrying on long term insurance business shall keep admitted capital 
amounting to the higher of 10% of technical provisions or the minimum paid up capital.		
								      
MOS ratio is the excess of assets over liabilities maintained for general and long term insurance 
business. Admissible assets and liabilities stated below is in accordance with the MOS Directives 
No. SIB/ 45/ 2016.										        
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4.8	 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities						    
				  
“IFRS 13 requires an entity to classify measured or disclosed fair values 
according to a hierarchy that reflects the significance of observable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, which comprises of three levels as described 
below, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole.”
										        
4.8.1	Valuation models	
									       
“IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation 
techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable input reflect market data obtained 
from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the  Company’s market assumptions. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.”					   
					   
Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) 
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) .  This 
category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar 
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered 
less than active, or other valuation technique in which all significant inputs are directly or 
indirectly observable from market data.”									       
	
“In conclusion, this category is for valuation techniques for which the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 
 
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). This category includes all assets and liabilities for which the valuation 
technique includes inputs not based on observable date and the unobservable inputs have a 
significant effect on the asset or liability’s valuation. This category includes instruments that 
are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which significant unobservable 
adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.		
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4.8.2	Financial instruments not measured at fair value 					   
					   
The following table summarises the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the 
reporting date by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement 
is categorised. The amounts are based on the values recognised in the statement of financial 
position.	

4.8.3	Fair value methods and assumptions							     
			 
Trade receivables and other receivables are carried at cost net of provision for impairment. The 
estimated fair value represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected 
to be received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair 
value.										        
											         
4.8.4	Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs – Level 3		
								      
The Company has no financial asset measured at fair value on subsequent recognition.		
								      
4.8.5	Transfers between the fair value hierarchy categories				  
						    
During the three reporting periods covered by these annual financial statements, there were 
no movements between levels as a result of significant inputs to the fair valuation process 
becoming observable or unobservable.									       
	
4.9	 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities	

There are no offsetting arrangements. Financial assets and liabilities are settled and disclosed 
on a gross basis.										        
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35. Dividends
						    
The directors propose the payment of dividend of ETB 83,210,255.71 for the year ended 30th 
June 2024. This dividend is subject to the approval by share holders at the Annual General 
Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these financial statements.			 
			 
36. Contingent liabilities	
					   
The Company’s contingent liabilities as at the date of this report 30 June 2024 is NIL		
				  
37. Commitments	
					   
The company has no commitments, not provided for in these financial statement as at the date 
of this report. 
						    
38. Events after reporting period
						    
In the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant post balance sheet events which could 
have a material  effect on the state of affairs of the Company as at 30 June 2024 and on 
the profit for the period ended on that date, which have not been adequately provided for or 
disclosed.	 					   
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25 September 2024
Date

Abed Mureithi
 Fellow of the Institute and Facility

 Of Actuaries (UK)

ACTUARY

Appendix V: Actuary’s Certificate

I, Abed Mureithi representing Actuarial Services (E.A) Limited, 26th floor, UAP OLD 
MUTUAL Tower, Upper Hill, P.O.Box 10472-0100 Nairobi, being an Actuary duly quali-
fied  having conducted  an investigation do hereby certify as under that as at 30 June 
2024:

A.	 That in my opinion the value placed upon the aggregate liabilities relating to the 
Ordinary Life Fund and Superannuation Fund of Ethio Life and General Insurance 
S.C in respect of policies on the basis of valuation adopted by me is not less than 
what would have been if the aggregate value had been calculated on the minimum 
basis prescribed;

B.	 That necessary steps as required were taken; and

C.	 That I am satisfied that value of assets adopted by me are, on the basis of the 
auditor’s certificate appended to the balance sheet, fully of the value so adopted 
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African Reinsurance Corporation 

1679 Karimu Kotun Street 
Victoria Island 

Lagos 23401,Nigeria 
Africa Re Centre, Hospital Rd, Upper Hill, P. O. Box 62328 Nairobi 00200, Kenya 

T: +254 202 97 0000 DL: +254  202 970617 F: +254 202 970777 | 
Web Site: www.africa-re.com 

 
 

PTA Reinsurance Company 
(ZEP RE) 

ZEP-RE Place, 8th Floor 
Longonot Road, Upper Hill 

PO Box 42769 
Nairobi, 00100,Kenya 

54 Employees 
Phone:254 20 273 8221 

Fax:254 20 273 8444 
www.zep-re.com 

 
 

Tunis Re 
12 Avenue du Japon, Montplaisir. Tunis 

BP 29 - 1073 Tunis. Tunisia 
http://www.tunisre.com.tn 

 
 

Kenya Reinsurance Corporation Ltd. 
P.O. Box 30271 00100 Nairobi, Kenya  

15th Floor, Reinsurance Plaza, Taifa Road, Aga Khan Walk, Nairobi.
Telephone: +254 20 220 2296, +254 703083000  

Email : atandi@kenyare.co.ke  

Website : http://www.kenyare.co.ke  

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
East Africa Reinsurance Company Ltd 

EARe House,98 Riverside Drive 
P.O. Box 20196, 00200 City Square Nairobi, Kenya 

Telephone: (254 20) 4443588, 4455385/6/7/8 Email: info@eastafricare.com  
http://www.eastafricare.com/ 

RE-INSURERS COMPANIES
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                 Ethiopian Reinsurance S.C 

   Lideta Sub City, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia 
Wereda 4, Keble 49 

H.No. 07/14 
Tel. +251911200587 

Email yewondwosseneteffa@gmail.com 

 

 
 
 
 

Sirius International Insurance Corporation (publ) 
Stockholm, Sweden 

stockholm@siriusgroup.com 
Sirius International Insurance Corporation (publ) UK Branch 

London, Great Britain 
london@siriusgroup.com 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Afro-Asian Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers (India) Pvt. Ltd. 
1406, Cyber One, 

Near Odissa Bhavan, 
Sector 30-A, Plot No.4-5, 

Vashi, Navi Mumbai - 400705. 
India. 

Tel : 91 22 65301052 - 61 
Email: info@afroasian-insurance.co.in 

 

 

  
 
APEX INSURANCE 

 
 

APEX Insurance 
Tel:+962 6 5864441 
Fax: +962 6 5866618 
Mobile: +962 79 5426955 
Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg 

 

 
APEX  Building , 21 Barakat Al Zu’bi  street 

P.O.Box 451 Amman 11831 Jordan 
www.apexib.com 

  

TREATY BROKERS
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